
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Questions regarding the nature of the agenda items or more detail on the agenda items listed above scheduled to be considered by the governmental 
body listed above can be directed to Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator at 920-854-4118 or at zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov.  

It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above-
stated meeting to gather information; no action will be taken by any governmental body at the above-stated meeting other than the governmental body 
specifically referred to above in this notice. Upon reasonable notice, a good faith effort will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled 
individuals through sign language interpreters or other auxiliary aid at no cost to the individual to participate in public meetings. Due to the difficulty in 
finding interpreters, requests should be made as far in advance as possible preferably a minimum of 48 hours. For additional information or to request 
this service, contact the Sister Bay Village Administrator at 854-4118, (FAX) 854-9637, or by writing to the Village Administrator at the Village 
Administration Building, 2383 Maple Drive, PO Box 769, Sister Bay, WI 54234. Copies of reports and other supporting documentation are available 
for review at the Village Administration Building during operating hours. (8 a.m. – 4 p.m. weekdays). 

I hereby certify that I have posted a copy of this agenda at the following locations: 

  □ Administration Building                   □ Library                       □ Post Office 

___________________________________________ / ___________________ 

Name                  Date 

 

         

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


2



January 28, 2016

To the Sister Bay Parks & Recreation Committee,

Please allow me to address concerns that have been raised in previous meetings regarding dogs being 
allowed in Sister Bay's waterfront park. Because I am unable to attend the Feb. meeting I have asked 
Drew Bickford to represent me and read this letter.

It is my understanding that dogs were originally banned from the park to eliminate beach closings 
secondary to E. coli. contamination. It is unfair to blame beach closings on dog feces as there are many 
significant factors which promote contamination (rainfall, temperature, wind direction, wave height, 
barometric pressure). The May 2006 Door County Beach Contamination Source Study states the 
following:

The antibiotic resistance testing and the genetic fingerprinting of E. coli  isolates 
collected in 2004 and 2005 from Sister Bay beach indicate that E. coli  isolates are from 
multiple sources, human, avian, dog and other unidentified  sources (Figure 41, pg 74).  
This indicates that the E. coli is not coming from one obvious source, but instead it is 
accumulating from many sources and being transported to the beach.  This finding takes 
the emphasis off of the remediation of one source and places it on remediation of the 
delivery system that is transporting the accumulation of many sources to the beach.  This 
delivery system at Sister Bay beach consists mainly of storm water pipes and impervious 
surface runoff discharging on and near the beach.  Additional E. coli concentrations and 
isolates need to be taken from the storm water pipe.

It is time to reconsider allowing dogs in our park now that our storm sewer system has been upgraded 
and our old, small sewer pipes replaced and the sewer system expanded.

The American Veterinary Medical Association's 2011 study states that 63% of dog owners consider their 
pet a family member. The Episcopal church, and perhaps other churches as well, invite the family pet to 
church yearly to be blessed. So it is not surprising that pet tourism is a growing business. Hotel chains, 
including the exclusive Kimpton Hotels and Four Season Hotels and Resorts, offer pet accommodations. 
But here in Sister Bay a sheriff asked me to leave Marina Fest because my dog was in accompaniment. I 
and other friends cannot comfortably attend concerts in the park but instead must stand outside the park 
perimeter with our dogs. Do not underestimate the importance of pet dogs as members of families - 
families with and without children, young as well as old. When we restrict dogs we frequently restrict their 
humans.

The dog park is a wonderful place where dogs can run off leash and socialize with other dogs but it's not 
the place where the family members congregate for social activities. That place is the park where the 
family, including pet members, want to walk and rest, listen to music or view the beauty of our village. 
Restricting dogs to the dog park is like restricting children to the playground area.

No one, including responsible dogs owners, want to see unsightly, unhealthy dog droppings in our park. 
That potential problem can be managed with positive signage requesting that we all help to maintain the 
beauty of our park by picking up after ourselves and our pets. Positive signage such as "if your dog 
poops you must scoop" is a friendly reminder that would present Sister Bay as a family friendly 
community in which to live and visit. Many communities use informative signage such  as "dog waste 
contaminates our water so always use a bag or scooper to pick up after your pet." (Incidentally, at the 
marina I haven't noticed dog feces or even discolored grass on the beautiful marina lawn.)

3



Many people, locals and visitors alike, routinely walk for enjoyment and health. Dog walking should be an 
encouraged activity. Sister Bay already has a limited number of sidewalks so we should not further 
restrict access to any walkways, especially the spectacularly beautiful park walk.

I cannot understand the significance of Sturgeon Bay's policy on banning dogs in their parks. As far as I 
am able to determine it was based on one person's opinion. Sister Bay should make an educated and 
reasonable decision based on Sister Bay factors and not rely on any one person's opinion from Sturgeon 
Bay.

Sister Bay should allow leashed dogs in our park. It would not harm our beach and would present Sister 
Bay as a family friendly community, it would promote tourism and allow greater attendance at park 
functions. And finally it would allow all of us that live here access to the wonderful park that our tax 
dollars support. 

Thank you for considering this matter, Karen McRoberts
10626 Claflin Ln

4



PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY PERFORMANCE PAVILION – 2364 MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The December 2, 2015 meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee was called 6 
to order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 2:01 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John Clove, Sharon Doersching and 9 
Scott Baker.   10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Facilities Manager Steve Mann, and 12 
Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz.  13 
 14 
Others:  Karen McRoberts, Ron Kane, Drew Bickford and Deputy Bob Sitte of the Door 15 
County Sheriff’s Department. 16 
 17 
Approval of Agenda: 18 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the December 19 
2, 2015 meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 20 
ayes. 21 
   22 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 23 
Lienau noted that no new correspondence had been received, and asked if anyone wished 24 
to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.  25 
 26 
Lienau pointed out that the time allotted for this meeting was very limited as an Employee 27 
Meeting had been scheduled for 2:45 P.M., and, therefore, Jackson, Mann and Suppanz 28 
would have to leave early. Further, Deputy Bob Sitte of the Door County Sheriff’s 29 
Department, who is the head of the Sheriff’s Reserve Officer Program, had been asked to 30 
provide input regarding the dogs in the park issue, but he was on duty and could be called 31 
out at any time. Therefore, there would be deviations from the stated Agenda order.  32 
 33 
Business Items: 34 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding dogs on public property; Consider a motion for action if 35 
necessary: 36 
At the present time dogs are not allowed on most of the Village’s parklands as an 37 
Ordinance was adopted which prohibits such activities. A few individuals have requested 38 
that those regulations be changed.  39 
 40 
Deputy Sitte explained that the members of the Door County Sheriff’s Department have no 41 
authority to issue citations for violations of Village Ordinances. The Village does contract 42 
with the Sheriff’s Reserve Program, and if someone brings a dog into a Village Park the 43 
Reserve Deputies have been instructed to inform the handler(s) that dogs are not allowed 44 
and ask them to go to the Dog Park. Dogs are allowed in the State Parks but they are not 45 
allowed in any County Parks.  46 
 47 
 48 

5



Minutes for the December 2, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

- 2 - 

Item No. 1. Presentation by YMCA personnel regarding their annual programming 1 
proposal and discussion regarding that proposal; Consider a motion for action if 2 
necessary: 3 
A copy of the proposed YMCA programming proposal for 2016 was included in the 4 
meeting packets and the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. Drew 5 
Richmond, the Northern Door YMCA Program Director, was present and noted that teen 6 
nights and beach volleyball have not been included in the 2016 programming proposal as 7 
there was very little participation in either of those programs in 2015. If Village officials 8 
would like to see other YMCA programming added in 2016 they should let him know. 9 
Doersching stated that she has heard comments that people would like to see two tennis 10 
lesson sessions conducted per week. Richmond responded that it would cost $346.00 to 11 
do that.  12 
 13 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Doersching that the YMCA’s programming 14 
proposal for 2016 which was reviewed at this meeting is  approved on the condition that a 15 
second day of tennis lessons shall be added per week. The cost of the additional 16 
programming shall not exceed $346.00. Motion carried – All ayes.  17 
 18 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding placing of gravel on Fieldcrest Lane; Consider a motion 19 
for action if necessary: 20 
Don Howard has indicated that Fieldcrest Lane, which is a dedicated unpaved public 21 
roadway, needs to have gravel added to it. Howard would be willing to arrange for the 22 
work to be done, but is wondering if the Village would pay for the gravel.  23 
 24 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker that the Village will reimburse Don 25 
Howard for the cost of materials used when gravel is added to Fieldcrest Lane in 2015. 26 
Motion carried – All ayes. 27 
  28 
Item No. 3. Discussion on sidewalks along Country Walk Drive and other possible 29 
infrastructure improvements/amentities; Consider a motion for action if necessary:  30 
The owner of a unit at the Country Walk Shops has requested that sidewalks be installed 31 
along Country Walk Drive.  32 
 33 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker that the members of the Country 34 
Walk Owner’s Association are given permission to make a connection into the public 35 
sidewalk on STH 42 at their expense, on the condition that the sidewalk design must be 36 
approved by the Village and all Village sidewalk specifications are met. Motion carried – All 37 
ayes. 38 
 39 
It was the consensus that if any further sidewalk work is requested by the Country Walk 40 
Owner’s Association a formal written request shall be forwarded to the Village. 41 
  42 
Item No. 4. Continuation of discussion regarding dogs on public property; Consider a 43 
motion for action if necessary: 44 
Item No. 5. Discussion and review of Sheriff’s services; Consider a motion for action if 45 
necessary: 46 
Item No. 6. Report from staff on parks, properties and streets activities: 47 
Item No. 7. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 48 
committee, official or employee: 49 

6



Minutes for the December 2, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Parks\2015\2015_12\120215 PPS Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz  on 12/2/2015; Last Printed: 12/11/2015 1:23 PM 

- 3 - 

Doersching indicated that she realizes that most dog owners are responsible, but there are 1 
some who do not clean up after their dogs, and that is why the current regulation was 2 
enacted in the first place. She is very concerned about e-coli contamination, especially if 3 
dogs are allowed on the beach, and is also concerned that there is potential for dog bite 4 
injuries to be sustained by people utilizing the parks. The Dog Park is very nice, and it was 5 
created because Village officials wanted people to have a safe place to go with their dogs. 6 
  7 
Baker indicated that he is a dog owner, and never takes his dogs to the beach. 8 
 9 
Clove indicated that most of the dogs he sees in the parks are owned by Village residents. 10 
He doesn’t want the Village to become known as “the place with the dog police”, and  11 
believes the current signage should remain but not be enforced. 12 
 13 
Karen McRoberts of 10626 Claflin Lane indicated that she believes it is natural to have a 14 
dog on a leash in the park. She can understand that dog droppings are an issue, but 15 
suggested that signage which says “Thank You For Keeping Your Dog on a Leash and 16 
Picking Up After Him or Her” be erected. McRoberts also noted that a number of people 17 
consider their dogs to be “members of the family” and take them wherever they go.  18 
 19 
At 2:44 P.M. Mann and Suppanz left to attend the Employee Meeting. 20 
 21 
Lienau noted that a letter had been received from Kathy Enquist concerning the dog issue, 22 
and the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. Enquist was not able to 23 
attend this meeting, and since Jackson had to leave, it was the consensus that this agenda 24 
item should be tabled until the January meeting of the Parks Committee. Enquist will be 25 
asked to attend that meeting to provide input.  26 
 27 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that Agenda Item No. 4 – Discussion 28 
regarding dogs on public property, Agenda Item No. 5 – Discussion and review of Sheriff’s 29 
services; Consider a motion for action if necessary, and Agenda Item No. 6 – Report from 30 
staff on parks, properties and streets activities shall be tabled until the January meeting of 31 
the Parks Committee. Motion carried – All ayes. 32 
 33 
Adjournment: 34 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Parks 35 
Committee at 3:02 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.  36 
 37 
Respectfully submitted,  38 

 39 
Janal Suppanz,  40 
Assistant Administrator 41 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



EXCERPT FROM FEBRUARY 9, 2016 MARINA COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding the placement of a mural on the Boathouse; Consider 
referral to the appropriate Committee, Commission, Board or official(s): 
Samples of potential murals which were prepared by Ram Rohas were included in the 
meeting packets and the Committee members jointly reviewed them.  
 
The Committee members indicated that they are very impressed with the work Rohas did 
on the mural in Baileys Harbor, but do not believe any of the proposed murals which were 
reviewed at this meeting were what they originally envisioned for display in Sister Bay. 
They also expressed concerns about what would happen with the mural if building 
alterations are made at some point in the future.    
 
A motion was made by Sunstrom, seconded by Duffy that the Marina Committee’s 
concerns about placement of a mural on the Boathouse shall be referred to the Parks 
Committee. Motion carried – All ayes. 
 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26




